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TOWN OF APPLE VALLEY 
TOWN COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 

 

To:  Honorable Mayor and Town Council  Date: June 14, 2016 
 
From:  Brad Miller, Town Engineer   Item No: 9 
 Engineering Depatment 
 
Subject: YUCCA LOMA BRIDGE CONTRACT AMENDMENT #11 OF THE 

YUCCA LOMA BRIDGE/YATES ROAD/GREEN TREE BOULEVARD 
PROJECT CONTRACT AGREEMENT, IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$470,532.00, FOR RESTORATION AREA PERMIT SUPPORT; GRANT 
SUPPORT; AND INTERAGENCY CLOSEOUT SERVICES  

 
T.M. Approval: _____________________  Budgeted Item:  Yes   No  N/A 

 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Approve the Yucca Loma Bridge Project Contract Amendment #11 with Dokken 
Engineering, the project’s design contractor, in the Not-to-Exceed amount of 
$470,532.00, subject to "Approval as to Form" by the Town Attorney and "Approval as 
to Content" by the Town Manager. 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
The purpose of Contract Amendment #11 (Project) is to provide the resources 
necessary to assist the Town in complying with regulatory permits for the 17-acre 
mitigation restoration site during the required five (5) year monitoring and reporting 
period. The Amendment further provides grant application support, project cost 
allocation work needed to invoice partner agencies and balances completed tasks. 
 
Dokken Engineering proposes to provide the additional services as outlined in the 
attached Proposal for a Not-to-Exceed amount of $470,532.00. The total contract 
provided all planning, environmental, design, right-of-way and construction support 
services for the $50 million improvements that are under construction between Apple 
Valley Road and Park Road, as well as all environmental documentation and permit 
services for the entire $80 million Yucca Loma Corridor Project that spans from Apple 
Valley Road in Apple Valley to Hesperia Road in Victorville.  
   
A summary of the estimated effort for each task and phase of work is included in the 
Contract Amendment Request Letter from Dokken Engineering, dated May 17, 2016. 
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This letter also identifies which agency, the Town, the County or the City of Victorville is 
responsible and/or benefiting from each task and their anticipated cost share and to 
what degree.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
To provide perspective, in 2006, the Federal Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program (RTIP) allocated $2,800,000.00 to the Town of Apple Valley, specifically for the 
environmental studies and structural design of the Yucca Loma Bridge. This money was 
allocated based on the condition that the Town provided 11.47% ($321,160.00) in 
matching funds, for which the Town had set aside and budgeted $500,000.00, creating 
a Project Fund Balance of $3,300,000.00. 
 
The original contract with Dokken Engineering for this Project was $2,850,981.00 and 
included Final Designs for the Apple Valley jurisdictional areas of the Project. The 
subsequent Contract Amendment #1 expanded the Dokken Engineering contract to 
include environmental studies and preliminary engineering for the San Bernardino 
County and Victorville segments and an additional Contract Amendment #2 provided for 
Supplemental Traffic Analysis relating to the above described expansion of the Project, 
bringing the total contract to $3,153,682.00. The Town’s planned budget for this Project 
was $3,300,000.00 and provided sufficient funds for the requested initial expansion of 
the environmental study area. Plus, with other jurisdictions now participating in the 
Project, the 11.47% matching fund requirement is divided among the participating 
jurisdictions, reducing the Town’s overall cost. 
 
In September of 2009, both the County of San Bernardino and the City of Victorville 
requested proposals from Dokken Engineering to provide final design services for their 
respective segments of the Project. On September 25, 2009, Dokken Engineering 
submitted Contract Amendment Request #3, Part One and Part Two, that included 
completion of final design and right-of-way services for the County of San Bernardino, 
and expanded Town of Apple Valley segments (Part One), as well as final design 
services for the City of Victorville (Part Two). 
 
While the original RTIP Grant funds and the Town’s 11.47% matching funds covered 
the additional $128,300.00 indicated in the proposal to appropriately amend the Apple 
Valley component of the contract, the San Bernardino County component required an 
additional commitment of $208,600.00 by the County. The County indicated its 
acceptance of the Dokken Engineering proposal and, on January 12, 2010, the Apple 
Valley Town Council approved Contract Amendment #3 (Part One), excluding Part Two. 
 
The Contract Amendment #3, added $336,900.00 to the contract, plus approved a 
change order for the TIGER II Grant Application-Enhancement Support Services, in the 
amount of $6,475,000.00 which brought the Dokken Engineering contract total to 
$3,497,057. The Dokken Engineering Contract Amendment #4, in the amount of 
$97,815.00, covered construction related work pertaining to the clearing and tree 



   

Council Meeting Date: 06/14/2016  9-3 

removal activities within the future bridge alignment, and brought the Dokken 
Engineering contract to a total amount of $3,594,872.00.  
 
Dokken Engineering Contract Amendment #5, in the amount of $256,078.00, further 
modified the scope of work due to project delivery requirement changes including the 
need for construction documents for the 17-acre restoration area, expanded value 
analysis services, additional hydraulic analysis and design related to the regional storm 
drain facility to be installed in Yucca Loma Road and delivering the Apple Valley Road 
to Park Road segment of the Project in four (4) separate bid packages instead of two 
(2). Contract Amendment #5 was approved on May 24, 2011 and brought the total 
contract amount to $3,850,950.00. 
 
Dokken Engineering Contract Amendment #6 reinstated those tasks previously deferred 
in Contract Amendment #5 and provided for additional services related to the 
acquisition of the State owned parcels. It also included construction support services for 
the Yucca Loma Bridge and Yucca Loma Road construction contract packages. 
Contract Amendment #6, in the amount of $847,400.00, approved on September 27, 
2011, brought the Dokken Engineering contract to a total amount of $4,698,350.00. 
 
Contract Amendment #7 included tasks in association with obtaining approval of a 
Conversion Proposal for State Parklands affected by the proposed Yucca Loma 
Bridge/Yates Road/Green Tree Boulevard Corridor Project and to revalidate the 
previous CEQA and NEPA determinations made in the Mitigated Negative Declaration 
and Finding of No Significant Impact. Contract Amendment #7, in the amount of 
$149,650.00 approved October 11, 2011, brought the current Dokken Engineering 
contract to $4,848,000.00. 
 
Contract Amendment #8, approved on August 14, 2012, included tasks relating to 
additional design effort, right-of-way services, and construction support, and brought the 
total Dokken Engineering contract to $5,270,400.00. 
 
Contract Amendment #9, approved on February 26, 2013, included expanded tasks 
relating to design effort, primarily in the area of Yates Road, and ongoing and expanded 
efforts relating to right of way acquisition. The parkland conversion process has 
continued to expand with additional tasks and requests from state and federal offices, 
and brought the total Dokken Engineering contract to $5,500,000.00. 
 
Contract Amendment #10 includes tasks in association with additional design and right-
of-way services for Yucca Loma Road and additional coordination efforts related to the 
State Parkland Conversion 6(f) process, past and present services provided as part of 
the Yucca Loma Bridge and Yates Road construction support and continued general 
project oversight and management. Contract Amendment #10 brings the total Dokken 
Engineering contract to $5,904,000.00. 
 
Contract Amendment #11 includes tasks in association with restoration area permit 
support for the five (5) year duration of the mitigation monitoring period, grant 
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application support for the recent TIGER and FASTLANE grant funding applications, 
and interagency closeout services that include all final billing, accounting, permits, 
reports and as-built services as the Yucca Loma Bridge, Yates Road and Yucca Loma 
Road improvements are nearing completion. 
 
Contract Amendment #11 brings the total Dokken Engineering contract to 
$6,374,532.00. 
 
Based upon the foregoing, staff recommends adoption of the form motion. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
There are sufficient funds approved for this Amendment in the current Project budget. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
1. Vicinity Map 
2. Dokken Engineering Contract Amendment #11 
 
  



   

Council Meeting Date: 06/14/2016  9-5 

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP: 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

  

Yucca Loma Bridge 

Yates Road 



   

Council Meeting Date: 06/14/2016  9-6 

 

 



   

Council Meeting Date: 06/14/2016  9-7 

  



   

Council Meeting Date: 06/14/2016  9-8 

 

  



   

Council Meeting Date: 06/14/2016  9-9 

 

  



   

Council Meeting Date: 06/14/2016  9-10 

 

  



Council Meeting Date: 06/14/2016  9-11 

 

  



   

Council Meeting Date: 06/14/2016  9-12 

 


